
REVISED
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
Called by:  John Butitta, Chairman DATE: THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2023 
Members:  Jean Crosby, Joe TIME: 5:30 PM 
Hoffman, Keith McDonald, Jaime 
Salgado, John F. Sweeney, 
Michael Thompson 

LOCATION:   ROOM 303 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BLDG 
404 ELM STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

AGENDA: 

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

C. Approval of Minutes – None

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Finance Committee with
issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three minutes.  Personal attacks or
inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We will allow a maximum of five
speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers may not address zoning
matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or the County Board.
Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed in open session.  An
individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the same topic.  This
prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on what is purported to
be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and state your name.
Thank you.

E. An Ordinance Abating the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the
year 2022 Payable 2023

F. An Ordinance to Abate the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
for the Year 2022 Payable 2023

G. An Ordinance to Abate the 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
for the Year 2022 Payable 2023

H. An Ordinance to Abate the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
for the Year 2022 Payable 2023

I. An Ordinance to Abate the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternative
Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023

J. An Ordinance Abating the Tax hereto Levied for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to Pay the
Principle of and Interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternative Revenue Source)
Series 2018 of Winnebago County, Illinois

K. An Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year
2022 Payable 2023



L. An Ordinance to Abate the 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year
2022 Payable 2023

M. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023

N. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023

O. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales 
Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 
Payable 2023

P. An Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year for Properties within the Special 
Service Area for the I39 Baxter Road County Water District Project

Q. Resolution Modifying the Budget of an American Recovery Act Project for RP011 Animal 
Service Building Upgrades (Provision of Contingency Fund)

R. Ordinance to Amend the Budget for Inmate Medical Contract

S. Closed Session - Review Minutes of Closed Session Meetings and Discuss Pending, Probable 
or Imminent Litigation

T. Approval of Minutes of Closed Session Meetings

U. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim against the County of Winnebago entitled James 
Neal versus Winnebago County

V. Other Matters

W. Adjournment



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance abating the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 
Levy for the year 2022 Payable 2023. 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 
year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012C STATE INCOME TAX ALTERNATE BOND
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023  

WHEREAS, on June 12, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-54 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternative Bonds in an amount not to exceed $1,340,000 for the purpose of capital 
improvements to certain County owned buildings; and, 

WHEREAS, on August 14, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003 CO 85 which the Board ordained to issue $1,340,000; and,   

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006-CO-20 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,500,000 to raise money for the purpose of defraying the 
cost of capital improvements to certain County buildings; and,  

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed Ordinance 
No. 2006-CO-58 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which the Board 
ordained to issue $3,500,000 in Alternate Bonds authorized in 2006-CO-20; and,  

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2012 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted Ordinance 
No. 2012-CO-031, which provides for the issuance and sale of $3,285,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012C to refund all of the $710,000 Outstanding Bonds of Series 2003D 
and a portion of the $2,800,000 Outstanding Bonds of Series 2012C; and,  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest payments on 
the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from State Income Tax Dollars (Pledged Revenues), 
which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an annual 2012C 
State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal 
and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due for 
each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and,  



WHEREAS, the County ordained to levy a 2022 payable 2023,  2012C State Income Tax 
Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $275,750 the amount needed to 
make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through 
December 30, 2023; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 
2023 tax year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of $275,750 
for the tax year 2022 payable 2023 is hereby abated in its entirety.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk.  



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2022 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016A PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003 CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternate Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose 
of paying the expenses of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice 
Center; and, 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006 CO-56 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which 
the Board ordained to issue $44,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest payments 
on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Public Safety Sales Tax Dollars (Pledged 
Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and desirable and in the best 
interests of the inhabitants of the County, in order to obtain net present value interest 
savings on the Series 2005A Bonds and the Series 2006A Bonds, to (i) refund the outstanding 
Series 2005A Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2016 through 2024, 
inclusive (the "Refunded Series 2005A Bonds"), and (ii) refund the outstanding Series 2006A 
Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2019 through 2024, inclusive (the 
"Refunded Series 2006A Bonds"); and,  

WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-007 on January 24, 2013, 
authorizing the issuance and providing for the sale of up to $45,000,000 of the County's 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Sources), Series 2013A (the "Series 2013A Bonds"). The Series 2013A Bonds were issued on 
February 7, 2013. A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds was deposited into 
escrow, invested in U.S. Treasury Obligations, and was applied to refund and defease the 
Refunded Series 2005A Bonds, which were called for redemption on June 30, 2015, and to 
refund and defease the Refunded Series 2006A Bonds, which were called for redemption on 
December 30, 2015, in each case the earliest possible redemption date; and,  



WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-018 which provided for the 
abatement of a portion of the property taxes levied to pay principal and interest on the 
outstanding general obligation alternate bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2006A; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-043 on March 24, 2016 which 
authorized and provided for the issuance and sale of $2,485,000 General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A for the purpose of refunding all of the $2,505,000 outstanding 
aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006A; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the County shall also levy 
an annual 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond tax in an amount sufficient to make the 
principal and interest on 2016A Bonds due for each year; and,  

WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the Ordinance provides that the County shall levy for the 2022 
payable 2023, 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax an amount sufficient 
to produce the sum of $99,400; the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments 
on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenue Subaccount of the Principal and Interest account to 
fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service otherwise payable from such tax levy; and,  

WHEREAS, there is presently at least $99,400 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 tax 
year payable 2023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of 
$99,400 for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate The 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016D PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternate Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose 
of paying the expenses of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice 
Center; and,  

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2005 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 
Ordinance No. 2005-CO-51 (the Series 2005A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue 
$40,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 
Ordinance No. 2006-CO-56 (the Series 2006A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue 
$44,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinances provides that the principal and interest payments 
on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Public Safety Sales Tax Dollars (Pledged 
Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and desirable and in the best 
interests of the inhabitants of the County, in order to obtain net present value interest 
savings on the Series 2005A Bonds and the Series 2006B Bonds, to (i) refund the outstanding 
Series 2005A Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2016 through 2024, 
inclusive (the "Refunded Series 2005A Bonds"), and (ii) refund the outstanding Series 2006A 
Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2019 through 2024, inclusive (the 
"Refunded Series 2006A Bonds"); and, 

WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-007 on January 24, 2013, 
authorizing the issuance and providing for the sale of up to $45,000,000 of the County's General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 
2013A (the "Series 2013A Bonds"). The Series 2013A Bonds were issued on February 7, 2013. A 
portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds was deposited into escrow, invested in U.S. 
Treasury Obligations, and was applied to refund and defease the Refunded Series 2005A Bonds, 
which were called for redemption on June 30, 2015, and to refund and defease the Refunded 



Series 2006A Bonds, which were called for redemption on December 30, 2015, in each case the 
earliest possible redemption date; and, 

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary to advance refund a portion  
of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds (the Refunded Bonds) and to pay the Refunded Bonds on 
the stated date of maturity for each of the Refunded Bonds in order to restructure the debt 
service on the Refunded Bonds; and, 

WHEREAS, the County issued Taxable General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bonds, Series 2016D 
in the amount of $5,420,000 for the purpose of advance refunding and restructuring a portion of 
the outstanding general obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in the amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments 
become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and,  

WHEREAS, the 2016D Alternate Bond Tax Levy provides that the County shall levy a 2022 payable 
2023, 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum 
of $100,800, the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding 
Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the 
2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service 
otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and, 

WHEREAS, there is presently at least $100,800 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 
payable 2023 tax year.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2022 payable 2023, 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in 
the amount of $100,800 is hereby abated in its entirety.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and directed 
to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago County 
Clerk. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate The 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016E PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATIVE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed Ordinance 
No. 2003 CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the expenses 
of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and,  

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-l 06 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which the 
Board ordained to issue $25,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and in the best interest of the 
County to obtain net present value interest savings and to restructure the indebtedness 
represented by the Series 2003E Bonds and to refund the portion of the Bonds of the 
outstanding Series 2003E Bonds maturing in each of the years 2020 to 2022 inclusive; and,  

WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2006-CO-143 on November 21, 2006 
authorizing the issuance, and providing for the sale of, the County's General Obligation 
Refinancing Alternate Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2006E in 
the amount of $18,765,000; and,  

WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-l 19 on November 10, 2016 
authorizing and providing for the issuance and sale of $18,515,000 General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016E of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of currently 
refunding and restructuring a portion of the outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds 2016E; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such 
payments become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and,  



WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the County ordained to levy a 2022 payable 2023, 2016E Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of$656,450 the 
amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate 
Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of 
the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt 
Service otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and,  

WHEREAS, there is presently at least $656,450 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 
payable 2023 tax year.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of 
$656,450 for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate The 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax 
Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2017C Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2017C TORT PROPERTY TAX AND 
QUARTER CENT SALES TAX ALTERNATIVE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY

FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2009 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 2009-CO-87 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordnance") 
which gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of paying expenses 
associated with certain tort obligations in excess of insurance coverage; and, 

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate Bond 
Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $13,000,000; and, 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2017, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved 
Ordinance No. 2017-CO-046 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and sale of up to 
$10,250,000 General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate 
Revenue Sources) Series 2017C of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of advance 
refunding a portion of the Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General Obligation 
Alternate Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010A; and,  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments  
on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from the Tort Fund Property Tax; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in which any of the 
aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and, 

WHEREAS, in Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance the County ordained to levy a 2022 
payable 2023 Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $971,750 (the amount needed to 
make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through 
December 30, 2023); and, 



WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that the County Treasurer 
shall deposit Pledged Revenues into the Pledged Revenues subaccount of the Bond Fund in an 
amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest and principal coming due on the 
Series 2017C Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit of such monies for such year, 
the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and, 

WHEREAS, there is at least $971,750 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount to fully 
make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond 
Fund through December 30, 2023; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year; 
and, 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois  
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $971,750. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year in the 
amount of $971,750 is hereby abated in its entirety.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 to 
pay the principle of and interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds   
(Alternative Revenue Source) Series 2018 of Winnebago County, Illinois.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2018 General Obligation Bonds Property Tax Levy for the Year 
2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETO LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 2022
PAYABLE 2023 TO PAY THE PRINCIPLE OF AND INTEREST ON TAXABLE GENERAL

OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATIVE REVENUE SOURCE)  
SERIES 2018 OF WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS.  

WHEREAS, the County Board of Winnebago County, Illinois, by an ordinance adopted on the 
25th day of October 2018, (as amended and supplemented, the "Bond Ordinance"), did provide 
the (i) the issue of Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2018 
(the "Bonds"), (ii) the pledge of taxes levied upon all taxable property in the County for IMRF 
purposes (the "Pledged Revenues") to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds 
and (iii) the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such principal of and interest ( "Pledged 
Taxes") if the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for IMRF purposes for levy year 2022 payable 2023 (the 
"IMRF Levy") and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County Clerk"); and 

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the IMRF 
Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 does not exceed the County's "limiting rate" for levy year 
2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the IMRF Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 
2022 payable 2023; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: Section J. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 
2023 in the Bond Ordinance are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $2,064,536. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2020A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020A ALTERNATIVE REVENUE BOND
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois adopted 
Ordinance No. 2020-CO-007 (the Authorizing Ordinance) authorizing the issuance of General 
Obligation Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2020A as 
provided in the Act, in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000; and,  

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted Ordinance 
No. 2020-CO-039 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which authorized and 
provided for the issuance of not to exceed $4,000,000; and,  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds 
for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and improving County highways, roads and 
bridges; and,  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from Matching Tax monies and Motor Fuel 
taxes which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance also provides that the County shall levy and Alternate 
Bond Property Tax each year until the Bonds are fully paid, in an amount sufficient to fully make 
principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds as such payments come are; and,  
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a face value 
of $2,590,000; and,  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Direction for Abatement of Taxes to abate from 
the taxes levied in the Bond Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County 
resulting from the sale of the Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as 
hereinabove referred to, the amount of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so 
levied which is to be extended for collection; and,  



WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that when funds are available 
and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest 
and principal coming due on the Series 2020A Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit 
of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and, 

WHEREAS, there is at least $399,500 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year; 
and,  

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that the 
2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $399,500.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2021 tax year in the amount of 
$399,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this Tax Abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2020B Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020B ALTERNATIVE REVENUE BOND
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2010 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois passed 
Ordinance No. 2010-CO-59 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which gave 
the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of buying real property and 
paying the expenses associated with certain renovation/remodeling of the building; and, 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate  
Bond Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $4,000,000; and, 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from lease revenues from the Health 
Department and the Quarter Cent Sales Tax; and,  

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved 
Ordinance 2020-CO-040 which authorizes the issuance of not to exceed $2,600,000 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2020B of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding Alternate Bonds of said 
County entitled Series 2010C Bonds; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 11 of the 2020B Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also 
levy an annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest 
payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in 
which any of the aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and,  

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a face value 
of $2,020,000, and,  



WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Certificate of Reduction of Taxes heretofore 
levied for the payment of Bonds on June 3, 2020 to abate the taxes levied in the Bond 
Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County resulting from the sale of the 
Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as herein above referred to, the amount 
of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be extended for 
collection; and, of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be 
extended for collection; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that when funds are available 
and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest 
and principal coming due on the Series 2020B Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit 
of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and, 

WHEREAS, there is at least $255,500 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal 
and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through 
December 30, 2023; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year; 
and,  

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that the 
2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $255,500.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year in the 
amount of $255,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the  
Winnebago County Clerk.  



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN  JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022  
Payable 2023.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2021A General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternative Revenue 
Source) Tax Levy for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes conducted by the states attorney. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021A BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023

WHEREAS, the County had issued General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012F (the “Prior Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing water system and 
associated capital improvements within the I-39/Baxter Road Service Area (the “Area”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 25 March 2021.  

WHEREAS, $3,485,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021A, of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment. 

WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021A and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bonds for levy 
year 2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A 
Bond  Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 
2023; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 



WHEREAS, there is at least $397,450 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2023; and,  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2022 payable 2023 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021A Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $397,450. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to abate the 2021B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation: 

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2021B General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternative Revenue 
Source) Tax Levy for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes conducted by the states attorney. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021B BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023

WHEREAS, the County had issued General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012G (the “Prior Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing improvements along 
Baxter Road and acquisition of a waterworks system from the Village of Cherry Valley (the 
“water system”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 25 March 2021.  

WHEREAS, $1,365,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021B, of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment. 

WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021B and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bonds for levy 
year 2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B 
Bond  Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 
2023; and  



WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 

WHEREAS, there is at least $158,300 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2023; and,  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2022 payable 2023 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021B Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $158,300. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN  JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:     David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:     Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title:   An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds  
 (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property 

  Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:   February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:   Already budgeted 

Was item budgeted?  Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information:  The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies 
     filed with the County Clerk. The abatement ordinances abate the tax levies  
     filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. The abatements 
     must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation:  Approval of an ordinance to abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding 
 Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds 
 Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement:  Not Applicable 

Legal Review: 



County Board:  02-23-2023

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION ALTERNATE REFUNDING
BONDS (PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2022

BONDS PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) had issued and had outstanding General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2013A (the "2013A Bonds"); and, these Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 
August 11, 2022 reference Ordinance No. 2022-CO-057 and $12,500,000 General Obligation 
Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 
Bonds (the "2022 Bonds") were issued; and 

WHEREAS, the revenue source that is pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest 
on the 2022 Bonds are revenues received by the County from the special county retailers' 
occupation tax and service occupation tax for public safety purposes (the "Pledged Revenues"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois has levied taxes for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County 
Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds for levy year 2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in 
accordance with the provisions of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate 
Revenue Source) Series 2022  Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount 
of principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2022 payable 2023; and  



WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. Whenever the pledged 
revenues or other lawfully funds are available and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount 
necessary to pay any principal of or interest coming due on the Series 2022 Bonds in the 
following year and upon the deposit of said monies for said year, the County may abate the 
Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year, with proper notification of such abatement filed 
with the County Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, there is at least $2,397,700 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal 
and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds through 
December 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 for the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds are hereby abated in their 
entirety in the amount of $2,397,700. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN  JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _______day of __________________________ 2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year for Properties within 
the Special Service Area for the I39 Baxter Road County Water District Project 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The 139/Baxter Road Water District included a Special Service Area as part of the project. The County 
Board approved a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property within the SSA for the 
administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal and interest on the County's 
General Obligation Bonds. The Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2022 totaled $431,100. There are 
sufficient funds in the Special Tax Allocation Fund from the URL tax increment to make the payments on 
the bonds for June 30, 2023 and December 30, 2023. Based on sufficient funds being on hand the County 
Board can abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2022 payable 2023. 

Recommendation:  

Approval of the Ordinance Abating the Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year Payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING SPECIAL TAX ROLL FOR 2022 LEVY  
YEAR FOR PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FOR

THE 1-39/BAXTER ROAD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT PROJECT  

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-056, approved establishing a Special Service Area ("SSA") for 
the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project; and, 

WHEREAS, on October 25, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-072, approved an amendment to said establishing Ordinance, 
which enacted a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property lying within 
the SSA for the administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal 
and interest on the County's General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012F, issued pursuant to the establishing Ordinance for the purpose of financing a part of 
the cost of construction and formation of said County Water District Project; and,  

WHEREAS, on March 25, 2021, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2021-CO-033, providing for (1) the issue of approximately $3,725,000 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A, for the purpose 
of refunding the County’s Series 2012F Bonds, (2) the pledge of certain revenues to the payment 
of principal and interest on the bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment and (3) the 
sale of the bonds to the purchaser thereof; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement ("Agreement") 
between the County of Winnebago, Village of Cherry Valley and the Village of New Milford, 
dated June 6, 2012, the parties determined that the area in and around the Baxter Road 
interchange on 1-39 is appropriate for the formation of an Industrial Park Conservation Area 
to spur private investments and development defined in the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law 
("URL"); and,  



WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the Special Tax Allocation Fund ("STAF" as defined 
in the URL), created with the tax increment financing will be placed under the control of 
Winnebago County to be administered for the length of the project; and, 

WHEREAS, funds deposited in the STAF generated from the URL District shall be used to pay 
for the payments on the SSA Bonds as first priority; and, 

WHEREAS, the Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2022 totaled $397,450; and, 

WHEREAS, there is sufficient funds from the URL increment in the STAF fund as of December 
22, 2022, to make the payments on the bonds for June 30, 2023 and December 30, 2023.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board hereby abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2022 payable 
2023 in the following amounts: 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
immediately upon its adoption.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Clerk of the County Board shall deliver certified copies of 
this Ordinance to the Winnebago County Clerk, the Chief Financial Officer and the Winnebago 
County Director of Finance. 



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this day of 2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: Resolution Modifying the Budget of an American Recovery Act Project for RP011 
Animal Service Building Upgrades. 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

In July 2021, the County Board approved the use of ARPA funds to address building needs at the animal 
services facility.  In October 2021, this project was reviewed and approved as an ARPA eligible project by 
Baker Tilly. Winnebago County Board is amending the authorized funds available for this project as 
follows project amount not to exceed $2,931,962 (this includes a contingency of $133,271).  

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the resolution 

Follow-Up:    A&E firm will finalize all necessary construction documents and a Notice to 
Proceed will be issued to Scandroli Construction after Board approval. 



County Board:  February 23, 2023 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CR 
RESOLUTION MODIFYING THE BUDGET OF AN AMERICAN RECOVERY ACT PROJECT  

FOR RP011 ANIMAL SERVICE BUILDING UPGRADES 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Animal Services building is in need of renovations 
and an addition; and, 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $25,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section; and, 

WHEREAS, competitive bids were received for solicitation #22B-2240 on September 13, 
2022 for the following; 

ADDITION & RENOVATIONS WORK AT COUNTY ANIMAL SERVICES 

WHEREAS,  Winnebago County Animal Services is in need of building renovations and 
the remodeling project has been approved by Baker Tilly for the use of American Rescue Plan 
(ARPA) funds; and, 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has reviewed the bids for the aforementioned service 
and recommends awarding the bid with all bid alternates included, as follows:  

SCANDROLI CONSTRUCTION CO. 
855 NORTH MADISON STREET           (See RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A – Bid Tab) 
ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61107 

       NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute, on behalf of the County of 
Winnebago a contract agreement and County Purchase Orders with SCANDROLI CONSTRUCTION 
CO., RICHARD L. JOHNSON ASSOCIATES and HUFFMAN FACILITY DEVELOPMENT, INC. for a total 
ARPA project amount not to exceed $2,931,962 (this includes a contingency of $133,271). 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Animal Services Administrator, 
Facilities Engineer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and 
County Auditor.          



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this day of 2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Tami Goral 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    02/16/2023 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to Amend the Budget for Inmate Medical Contract 

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:   02/23/2023 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? No    Amount:   $91,721 

If not, explain funding source:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code     40115/43150   

Background Information:  The Purchasing Department sent out Request for Proposals for Inmate 
Health Care Services for both the WCSO and the Juvenile Detention Center in July of 2018.  The 
University of Illinois College of Medicine - Rockford was awarded the two separate five (5) year 
contracts.  The contract terms allowed for an initial one (1) year term, followed by renewal 
options. This proposed Amendment is the final option term of the contract agreement and also 
allows for an extension of 6 months which will align this and all future Health Care Service 
contracts with County’s fiscal year end date of September 30.  This will eliminate mid-year 
budget requests for by the WCSO.  The services provided have been very satisfactory. 

Recommendation:    Sheriff’s Department recommends approval of the increase.  The budget increase is 
$246,167 over the next 18 months.  The increase is mostly due to UIC’s nursing labor cost increases. 

Contract/Agreement:  
The contract renewal agreement is for 18 months and will commence April 1, 2023 and run 
through September 30, 2024.   

Follow-Up:   
Purchasing Department will go out for bid on a new multiyear Health Care Services RFP in 2024. 

Budget Impact:  $91,721

Public Safety Sales Tax / Medical and Dental Consulting  



1 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance: February 16, 2023 
Lay Over: February 23, 2023 

Sponsored by:  Final Vote: March 9, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman 

2023 CO 

TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

TITLE    Ordinance to Amend the Budget for Inmate Medical Contract 

ORDINANCE 

WHEREAS, The Winnebago County Jail has negotiated a new contract for Inmate Medical 
Care with the University of Illinois College of Medicine, 

          WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 30, 2022 meeting; 
and,  

WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #23-011 Inmate Medical Contract. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



2/8/2023
SHERIFF

0101

DEPT CODE
ACCT. 

NO. PROJECT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
BEGINNING 

BUDGET
ADJUSTED 

BUDGET
INCREASE 

(DECREASE)
REVISED BUDGET 

AMOUNT
Expenses:

40115 43150 Medical $2,683,691 91,721$                2,775,412.00$           

Revenue:

91,721$                -$  

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source: Reserves

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

BA23-011

40115

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Approval by staff liaison:

GARY CARUANA

$91,721

DEPT. BUDGET NO.

The Purchasing Department sent out Request for Proposals for Inmate Health Care Services  in July of 2018.  The 
University of Illinois College of Medicine - Rockford was awarded the two separate five (5) year contracts.  The contract 
terms allowed for an initial one (1) year term, followed by renewal options. This proposed Amendment is the final 
option term of the contract agreement and also allows for an extension of 6 months which will align this and all future 
Health Care Service contracts with County’s fiscal year end date of September 30.  This will eliminate mid-year budget 
requests for by the WCSO.  The contract renewal agreement is for 18 months for the period of April 1, 2023 through 
September 30, 2024, with a total increase of $246,167.  The above amount is for the remainder of FY 2023.

N/A
Potential alternatives to budget amendment:



Resolu�on Execu�ve Summary

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date: February 16, 2023 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled James Neal versus Winnebago County. 
Board Meeting Date: February 23, 2023 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount: 
If not, explain funding source:   
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535    

Background Information:  Settlement for James Neal in the amount of $47,618.25. 

Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its February 16, 2023 meeting. 

Contract/Agreement: 

Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 

Follow-Up:   N/A 

 Budget Impact:
Tort Judgement Fund / Worker's Comp Claims

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CR 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

JAMES NEAL VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having  claims asserted against 
it by James Neal for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Facilities 
Department, and, 

WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $47,618.25 for the settlement  funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 

WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled James Neal versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by James Neal while in the employment of the 
Facilities Department by payment of the amount of $47,618.25 for the settlement for permanent 
disability for a Workers Compensation case. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for James Neal in the amount of 
$47,618.25 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

  JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 


	Revised Agenda
	Ordinance Abating 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2016A PSST Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2016D PSST Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2016E PSST Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2017C Tort Property Tax & Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance Abating Tax hereto Levied for Yr 2022 Payable 2023 to pay principle of & interest on Bonds
	Ordinance to Abate 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2021A
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2021B
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds Series 2022
	Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year for Properties within Special Service Area
	Resolution Modifying Budget of American Recovery Act Project for RPO11 Animal Service Bldg. Upgrades
	Ordinance to Amend Budget for Inmate Medical Contract
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winn. Entitled James Neal vs. Winn. Cty.



